
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Wednesday, 8 June 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Council Offices,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Sue Woolley, 
Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren and Councillor Ian Stokes 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 20 April 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 9) 

4.   Updates from previous meeting 
To consider updates on Actions agreed at the meeting held on 20 April 2022. 
 

(Page 11) 

5.   Counter Fraud Annual Report 
As part of the Committee’s terms of reference, it is required to monitor and 
review the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities that are being 
undertaken to mitigate those risks.   
 

(Pages 13 - 23) 

6.   Risk Management Annual Report 
In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee, it is a requirement 
to produce an annual report on the risk management and business continuity 
arrangements in place. 
 
 

(Pages 25 - 28) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

7.   Annual Treasury Management Review 
The report provides the Committee with the details of the Council’s treasury 
management activity for the financial year 2021/22. 
 

(Pages 29 - 38) 

8.   Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022 – 2023. 
 

(Pages 39 - 40) 

9.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

 



 

Meeting of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 
Wednesday, 20 April 2022, 2.00 pm 

 

 

 
 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
 
Cabinet Members 
 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the Council 
 
Officers  
 
Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer 
Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 
Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 
Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer 
 

 
77. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors’ Johnson, Jacky Smith and 
Woolley. 
 
Councillor Ian Stokes was substituting for Councillor Johnson and Councillor 
Whittington was substituting for Councillor Woolley. 
 

78. Disclosure of interests 
 

No interests were disclosed. 
 

79. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 March were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record. 

 
80. Updates from previous meeting 

 
No actions were agreed at the last meeting of the Committee on 16 March 2022. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

81. Contract Procedure Rules 
 
The Chief Finance Officer presented the report which detailed proposed changes to 
the Contract Procedure Rules.  A further mapping document was circulated at the 
meeting to align with the numbering of the agenda pack.  The content of the 
mapping document had not been changed only the page numbering.   
 
The Contract Procedure Rules was a key document which had last been updated in 
January 2020.  The document was reviewed regularly and since it had last been 
updated changes had been made in relation to procurement best practice and 
updated legislation following the United Kingdom leaving the European Union.  
Guidance and support had been received from Welland Procurement which had 
resulted in an amended Contract Procedure Rules document which was consistent 
with the other six Welland procurement partner authorities.  This enabled 
collaboration and shared working on procurement activities so that activities could 
be maximised. 

 
Key changes to the document included clarity and transparency around authority 
level thresholds and the hierarchical sequency depended on the amount of the total 
contract value and not the annual amount.  The authority levels were: 
 

• Up to £50k – Heads of Service or equivalent level (manager) 

• £50k up to £100k – Assistant Director, or in the absence of the Assistant 
Director, then Director 

• £100k up to £200k – Director (or any Corporate Management Team officer) in 
consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member 

• £200k and above – Key Decision taken by Cabinet through the Forward Plan 
mechanism 
 

An example of how this worked was given by the Chief Finance Officer. 
 
The mapping document gave an overview of the changes proposed between the 
document adopted in January 2020 and what was currently proposed.  The 
changes within the document were mainly in respect of clarification and included 
greater detail in respect of decision making. 
 
Members raised the following comments: 

 

• Why was the reference to irregular tenderers deleted? 

• What assurances were there that secondary procurement processes were in 
place. 

• Rather than procurement being undertaken by each individual service, had a 
central procurement point been considered in order to increase economies of 
scale? 

• Reference was made to 1.2 in the report and confirmation was sought about 
having a dedicated procurement resource, was this an extra member of staff 
who would take responsibility for procurement on behalf of the Council? 

 
The Chief Finance Officer replied that the references to irregular tenderers were 
covered in more detail at 143.6.1 and the reference was no longer required.  He 
gave assurances in respect of the procurement processes in place and dialogue 
was taking place in relation to a centralised procurement area.   

4



 

 
A procurement lead had been included in the staffing structure that had been 
approved by Council in Autumn 2020 and this was supported by Welland 
Procurement partnership. 
 
Members were supportive of the review of the Rules that had taken place and 
asked if this would happen annually.  It was stated that the trigger for this review 
had been the points raised by Welland Procurement and the exit from the European 
Union and legislative changes.  Any significant changes to the document would be 
brought forward as required, together with any compliance issues.  The document 
was a “live” document and would be kept under review annually. 

 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to recommend the updated Contract 
Procedure Rules to the Constitution Committee. 
 
Decision 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee recommends the updated Contract 
Procedure Rules to the Constitution Committee. 
  

82. Strategic Risk Register 
 

The Chief Finance Officer presented the report.  The Strategic Risk Register was 
presented to the Governance and Audit Committee every six months as part of the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference.  The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the 
Risk Register was a live document. There was no end date and it reflected the 
environment of the authority in respect of internal and external risks.   
 
A thematic approach to risks had been taken by the Committee a year ago to move 
away from corporate risks to thematic risks.  A mapping exercise was carried out to 
move the risks into a thematic style and allowed for live risks to be categorised 
under the headings and allowed for the register to be kept more up to date.   
 
The report listed the actions and activities that had taken place since the register 
was last before the Committee under the seven headings.  Significant progress had 
been made within the controlled environment of each risk. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer reminded Members that the residual risk was placed on 
the risk after the controls had been implemented.  A risk would have a gross risk 
score which would be the risk, if no controls were in place and that was measured 
by impact and likelihood.   
 
The report contained a table which explained the risk which did have a subjective 
element in respect of the Officers who were taking responsibility for managing the 
risk.  The residual risk was the risk the Council was exposed to after the controls 
are in place.  The column on the right of the document detailed the actions being 
undertaken to help mitigate the risks listed and it was expected that the headings 
and responses would change going forward as new risks were added or became 
more urgent.   

 
It was noted that all the residual risks currently sat either in the amber or green 
section.  If a risk was in red, then the controls in place are potentially not sufficient 

5



 

to reduce the risk to an acceptable level.  A further report would come to the 
Committee in the Autumn. 
 
Action 
 
Strategic Risk Register to be included to the Work Programme to return to 
Committee in the Autumn. 
 
The Chairman stated that the risk register was not in relation to specific risks, but 
more in respect of common themes that went through the authority. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer stated that the themes within the risk register were 
looked at from a corporate perspective, they were not specific but were on a 
broader perspective, some were internal, others external and he gave examples of 
how this worked to the Committee which enabled them to be more stable and less 
volatile than other risk registers. 

 
One Member asked if there was an Operational Risk Register that sat underneath 
the Strategic Risk Register, did it use the same risk scoring matrix.  The Chief 
Finance Officer replied that there was an Operational Risk Register which was 
managed by Heads of Service specific to each section and risks and the 
methodology for control was the same with both gross and residual risks, however, 
it did not come under the remit of the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to note the content of the report and the 
review of the updated Strategic Risk Register attached to the report at Appendix A. 

 
83. Financial Regulations Review 

 
The Chief Finance Officer presented the report on the Financial Regulations 
Review which followed the same process of the Contract Procedure Rules.  Both 
documents were closely aligned in the context of the Constitution Review.  A 
mapping document which showed the proposed changes was appended to the 
report. Minor changes had been made to the document since it was last reviewed in 
January 2020 and had been carried out following feedback from Officers and 
Members where information contained within the document required more clarity 
and transparency. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer highlighted the key changes within the document which 
concerned external grant funding shown within Section 33.  Often there was no 
information about the implications of the award of a grant and examples were given 
in respect of the Green Homes Grant and the Changing Homes Grant.   
 
One of the proposed changes was that before these grant applications were 
submitted, they were signed off by the relevant senior officer to make sure that the 
implications to the authority of the grant were known, such as any legacy 
implications or exit costs. 

 
Other proposed changes were in respect of the revenue and capital budget 
virement limits for Officers and Members of the Council, in-year budget framework 
amendments to both Cabinet and Council.  The introduction of in-year financial 
thresholds to access discretionary reserves for one-off spends, amendments to the 
table detailing authorised limits for officers and amendments to write-off limits. 

6



 

 
A full roll out of training would be put in place to bring Members up to date on the 
new changes subject to Council adopting the updated Financial Regulations at 
Council in May 2022. 
 
It was noted that the proposed changes in respect of grants was welcome as often 
grants came with conditions and the authority needed to be aware of the 
implications.   The Financial Regulations impacted both Officers and Members and 
training would be made available to all Members to help them understand better the 
financial framework that the Council operated in. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to recommend the updated Financial 
Regulations to the Constitution Committee. 

 
Decision  
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee recommends the updated 
Financial Regulations as shown at Appendix A to the report to the 
Constitution Committee.  

 
84. Delivering Good Governance - External Review 

 
The Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer presented the 
report which concerned the progress against the external review which was 
commissioned in September 2019.  In November 2020 the Committee had received 
an implementation plan which outlined specific actions to address where 
improvements could be made.  Since the review significant changes had happened 
to the authority with the appointment of a new Chief Executive and the development 
and adoption of a new Corporate Plan. 
 
The implementation plan was attached to the report and highlighted where updates 
had been made.  The recent Local Government Association’s Corporate Peer 
Review represented a more up to date review to the one taken in 2019.  It was 
proposed that this would be the final report in respect of the external review taken in 
2019. 
 
Members noted that progress that had been made to date. A question was asked in 
respect of internal report sign offs to which the Assistant Director of Governance 
and Deputy Monitoring Officer replied. 
 
The recommendation within the report was proposed, seconded and AGREED. 

 
Decision 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee noted the content of the final 
report on the progress made against the implementation plan following the 
external review into delivering good governance and that no further areas 
were identified where further action was required. 
 

85. Partnership Governance Policy 
 

The Chief Finance Officer presented the report.  Following a review carried out by 
External Audit it was identified, as best practice, that the Council should have a 

7



 

Partnership Policy in place to ensure a consistent approach to how the Council 
managed partnerships, either entering or exiting a partnership or as a key player 
within a partnership.   
 
The policy before the Committee set out a structured approach on how the Council 
managed its partnerships.  A central register would contain all the key partnerships 
that the Council was an active participant of and identify a Lead Officer for each 
partnership to ensure that the appropriate framework for governance and 
accountability was followed.  How the partnership was managed including any 
financial obligations and that they were included in the annual budget process. 
 
The report covered what the definition of partnership working was, the nominated 
Lead Officer and their responsibilities, how existing partnerships were managed.  
Entering into a new partnership both where the Council was not the lead body and 
when the Council was the lead body and exiting partnerships. 
 
A Partnership Register would be formulated and maintained by the Democratic 
Services Section.  It would provide a comprehensive list of all partnerships that the 
District Council was engaged with.  A Partnership Health template which was 
appended to the report, would be used to undertake an annual review of each 
partnership.  Work would start on the Partnership Register and this would come 
back to the Committee in the future. 

 
It was noted that the Partnership Policy did not cover the Council’s owned 
Companies. 
 
Members discussed the proposed policy. Comments were made about certain 
areas and it was noted that areas such as payroll did not come under the definition 
of partnership working.  The scoring mechanism was discussed and it was stated 
that this would be carried out at a senior level.  How the Partnership Policy would 
work was also discussed in relation to those partnerships already in place to which 
the Chief Finance Officer replied.  It was stated that dialogue with other 
organisations had taken place and had helped to compile the policy. 
 
Members welcomed the proposed Partnership Governance Policy and it was 
proposed, seconded and AGREED. 
 
Decision 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee approves the Partnership 
Governance Policy. 

 
86. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 

 
It was requested that the update on Section 106 funds was not in respect of the 
status of the funds, but was in relation to the process of issuing Section 106 funds 
and that the Work Programme was to be amended to reflect this. 
 
➢ Action 
 
The Work Programme to be amended in relation to the Section 106 update to 
state that the update should be in respect of the process of issuing Section 
106 funds. 

8



 

 
87. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

None. 
 

88. Close of meeting 
 

The meeting was closed at 14:52. 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 20 April 2022 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee.  

Min 
no.  

Agenda 
Item 

Action(s) Assigned to Comments/status Deadline 

82  Strategic 
Risk 
Register 

Strategic Risk Register to be 
included in the Work Programme 
to return to Committee in the 
Autumn 

Democratic Services Officer Added to Work Programme 
 

Complete 

86 Work 
Programme 

The Work Programme to be 
amended in relation to the 
Section 106 update to state that 
the update should be in respect 
of the process of issuing Section 
106 funds. 

Democratic Services Officer Amend Work Programme 
accordingly 

Complete 

      

  

11

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
8 June 2022 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 
  Deputy Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Counter Fraud Annual Report 2021/22 

One of the key areas for Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is to 
monitor and review the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities that are being 
undertaken to mitigate those risks.   

 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

A High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 23 May 2022 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 23 May 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the Council  26 May 2022 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the contents of this 
report including the proposed workplan for 2022/23. 

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee it is a requirement to produce 

an annual report on the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities undertaken.  

The report being presented covers the financial year 2021/22 and details the various 

aspects of work delivered during the course of the year.  Counter fraud is fundamental to 

the Council’s achievement of its strategic objectives.   

2 Summary of Position 

2.1 The Council is committed to the highest standards of quality, probity, openness and 

accountability. As part of the Committee’s terms of reference, counter fraud is one of the 

key areas of focus being an essential element of delivering good governance. In order to 

develop and promote greater awareness, and in line with best practice, a review of the 

Council’s counter fraud arrangements has been undertaken, culminating in this Annual 

Report for 2021/22. This report sets out the key outcomes from the counter fraud work 

delivered during the year relating to both welfare/benefit fraud and non-welfare/benefit fraud.  

2.2 Like any organisation South Kesteven District Council is inherently vulnerable to the risk of 

fraud and corruption and, with reducing Government funding and the current economic 

position, it is vital that robust arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud are 

maintained, and best use of information and knowledge is made in order to ensure effective 

fraud prevention procedures are in place. 

3 Counter Fraud Framework 

3.1 Governance and Audit Committee approved a new Counter Fraud Framework on 26 

January 2022.  The previous Counter Fraud Strategy 2018/20 was last considered in 

September 2018.  The new framework includes a Counter Fraud Strategy, Counter Fraud 

and Anti-Corruption Policy, Whistleblowing Policy, Fraud Response Plan and Anti-Money 

Laundering Policy – further details below:   

3.2 Counter Fraud Strategy outlines the Council’s stance of zero tolerance to all forms of fraud, 

theft and corruption and the Council’s response to fraud under the five pillars of activity of 

Govern, Acknowledge, Prevent, Pursue and Protect. 

3.3 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy outlines the scope, aims and objectives, 

responsibilities, outcomes and reporting advice in countering fraud and corruption.  This 

Policy also includes the Whistleblowing Policy and Fraud Response Plan as detailed below. 

3.4 Whistleblowing Policy outlines processes that are in place to respond to whistleblowing 

received.  It includes the scope, process, how the Council will respond and how the matter 

is progressed.  The policy is supported by a Whistleblowing Process Flowchart that shows 

the various stages and decision points of a whistleblowing issue. 

3.5 Fraud Response Plan outlines what the Council will do when it is alerted to a potential 

fraud.  It includes what should be done if fraud is suspected, tips, safeguards and 

investigation and potential outcomes.  The Plan is supported by a Fraud Response Plan 

Flowchart that shows the various stages of the fraud response. 

3.6 Anti-Money Laundering Policy explains the Council’s stance against anti-money 

laundering.  It consists of definitions, scope, objectives and general procedures. 

 

14



 

 
 

4 Whistleblowing  

4.1 Assurance Lincolnshire manages the Confidential Reporting Line on behalf of the 

Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership and acts as a central point of contact.  An analysis 

of district related referrals made to the Reporting Line during 2021/22 identified that 56 

referrals were received (63 in 2020/21).  Of the 56 district referrals received by the 

Confidential Reporting Line, 20 (36%) were for South Kesteven District Council.  This is a 

reduction of around a third from the previous year of 31. 

4.2 Summary of referrals by Authority: 

Authority 
Number 
2021/22 

 Number 
2020/21 

Boston 2 3 

City of Lincoln 25 20 

East Lindsey 0 1 

North Kesteven 3 3 

South Holland 1 1 

South Kesteven 20 31 

West Lindsey 5 4 

Total 56 63 

4.3 The main type of district referrals in 2021/22 related to benefits/council tax and housing 

tenancy. 

4.4 In addition to the 20 whistleblowing allegations to the Confidential Reporting Line, the 

Council received two allegations that were reported direct – these were in relation to staff 

conduct.  All 22 whistleblowing allegations have been investigated and action taken where 

appropriate. 

4.5 Breakdown by category of allegation received for South Kesteven 2021/22: 

 

 

15



 

 
 

Theft of fuel whistleblowing  

4.6 Governance and Audit Committee has been provided with verbal updates throughout 

2021/22 in relation to a theft of fuel whistleblowing received by the Council in May 2020.  

Following the conclusion of the police investigation the Council is now able to share a 

summary of the allegation, the investigations and actions implemented. 

4.7 The whistleblower stated that a waste operative was stealing fuel by syphoning from his 

vehicle’s fuel tank and selling it for financial gain and that this had been ongoing for several 

years.  The whistleblower also subsequently advised that another operative was also 

implicated in the thefts and had taken fuel from the same vehicle whilst the other operative 

was on leave. 

4.8 Initial analysis of evidence indicated that there would be basis for further investigation due 

to an apparent low miles per gallon (MPG) achieved by the specific vehicle which the 

operative had driven daily.  It was also noted that on the occasions when other drivers had 

used the vehicle the MPG was notably higher.   

4.9 In line with the Council’s Fraud Response Plan an investigating officer was appointed who 

was independent of those involved, professionally qualified and experienced in conducting 

various investigations to a criminal standard.  The investigating officer found that there was 

enough evidence that supported the whistleblower’s allegations and this was subsequently 

reported to the Police in June 2020. 

4.10 The Police investigation concluded in July 2021 – there were significant delays due to the 

impact of Covid – with the Police sending their file to the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS).  

The CPS provided authority to charge, and the summons file was prepared.   

4.11 The driver appeared in Court in October, November and December 2021 – at the last 

hearing he was sentenced to 8 months, suspended for 18 months, plus 200 hours unpaid 

work. 

4.12 At the proceeds of crime hearing at Lincoln Crown Court in March 2022, it was stated that 

the defendant made a total benefit of £42,352.35 from his criminal activity.  The figure was 

calculated on the legitimate market value of the stolen fuel plus inflation.  The amount of 

£42,362.35 was therefore awarded as compensation to the Council to be paid within three 

months (by 30 June 2022).   

4.13 As a result of the whistleblowing investigation the following actions have been implemented: 

4.14 Action 1:  Access to fuel 

Maximum limits on the frequency of refuelling have been implemented eg one refuelling per 

day or three per week – these are based on an informed assessment of expected fuel usage. 

4.15 Action 2:  Fuel management and monitoring – analysis  

Expected MPG range has been set for each vehicle with MPGs outside the parameters 

being flagged by the system.  Refuelling data for any unusual pattern is checked and 

reported.  Procedure notes have been produced to set out how the MPG monitoring is 

conducted.   

4.16 Action 3:  Fuel management and monitoring – data integrity 

Random spot checks to verify vehicle mileage are requested and the responses on 

odometer readings are then checked against system data for any anomalies.  Odometer 

16



 

 
 

readings continue to be verified at the time of vehicle servicing providing further assurance 

in this area. 

4.17 Action 4:  Spot checks 

This should be a consideration for each service area with Council vehicles as to whether 

such checks should take place from a health and safety perspective, in addition to verifying 

compliance with the controls arising from the investigation. 

4.18 Action 5:  Physical, preventative controls 

Anti-syphoning devices have been fitted to all vehicles. 

4.19 Action 6:  CCTV 

Additional CCTV cameras have been installed to cover the fuel tanks. 

4.20 Action 7:  Culture and deterrents 

Communications have been issued to all staff reminding them that the Council has a zero 

tolerance to fraud.   

5 Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership 

5.1 The Partnership continues to work with partners to protect the Public Purse within 

Lincolnshire.  The Partnership, which includes all councils within Lincolnshire, works to 

improve fraud resilience across Lincolnshire by co-ordinating targeted fraud awareness 

campaigns; sharing fraud intelligence, best practice and expertise; delivering savings and 

making effective use of resources.   

5.2 Extensive and varied communication channels have been used to promote fraud awareness 

across a wide audience and increased whistleblowing traffic is evidence that this is working 

well. 

5.3 The Council continues to actively contribute to the work of the Partnership.  The 

Partnership’s key outcomes in 2021/22 include raising fraud awareness by sharing pro-

active fraud awareness campaigns and managing local and national intelligence sharing 

about emerging risks and threats.  

5.4 The Partnership also provides and manages the whistleblowing Confidential Reporting Line. 

5.5 The Partnership supported the district council arrangements to generate revenue from 

Council Tax fraud and error: 

− The Single Person Discount review was delayed due to the pandemic.  Work  has been 
ongoing during 2020/21 and 2021/22 to determine whether it can take place during 
2022/23. 

− The resource within the revenues teams is minimal and this has been reduced further 
by the introduction of the £150 Council Tax (Energy) Rebate. There has also been a 
change in resource at Lincolnshire County Council (LCC).  There is a meeting between 
the districts and LCC over the coming weeks to agree a way forward.   

− It is estimated to produce gross revenue of £983k with a net revenue split estimated of 
£704k (LCC): £122k (Police) and £113k (districts). 

 

 

 

17



 

 
 

6 Fraud elearning 

6.1 The Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership have developed a bespoke elearning module.  

This is currently being reviewed for districts and will hopefully be ready for rolling out in the 

summer but the timing has yet to be confirmed by the Partnership. 

7 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

7.1 Since 1996 the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) every two years (every year for Council Tax 

Single Person Discount) undertake a compulsory national data exercise.  The NFI data is 

provided by some 1,200 participating organisations from the public and private sectors 

including local authorities, private registered providers of social housing and pension 

schemes.   

7.2 Data matching involves comparing sets of data electronically, such as the payroll or benefit 

records of a body, against other records held by the same or another body to see to what 

extent they match. 

7.3 Fraud is the most experienced crime in the UK, accounting for around 40% of all crime. Data 

indicates that fraud levels are increasing. Latest data from the Crime Survey for England 

and Wales shows that there were 5.1 million reported instances of fraud in the year ending 

September 2021, a 36% increase compared to the year ending September 20191. 

7.4 In the public sector, the estimated cost of fraud is between £29 billion and £52 billion2 per 

year. Fraud against the public sector can compromise public services and damage trust in 

government. Finding ways to help safeguard public funds through fraud prevention and 

detection programmes like the NFI are important for protecting vital public services.  

7.5 Recently, the emergency response to the Covid-19 pandemic led to significant increases in 

government funding to support individuals and the economy through an uncertain and 

challenging period. The need to have in place fast and effective counter measures to 

minimise fraud losses further highlights the importance of tools such as the NFI to protect 

public funds. 

7.6 Fraud is constantly evolving, becoming increasingly complex and digitally enabled. Over the 

past 25 years the NFI has and continues to respond to the ever-changing fraud risk 

landscape through exploiting new technologies to enhance data matching capabilities, and 

by broadening data sharing opportunities across the public and private sector. Cumulative 

detected and prevented savings identified from NFI data matching now exceed £2 billion. 

7.7 Examples of recent NFI developments include: 

• taking a leading role in Covid-19 fraud prevention work by developing Bank Verification 

and Active Company Check products to flag anomalies in Covid-19 grant payment data 

• working with the department for Business Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) to help 

identify and recover fraud losses from Covid-19 grant recipient funding 

• sharing NFI data more widely across government, including with the Department for 

Work and Pensions (DWP) and for use within other tools and products  

 

 
1 ONS Crime in England and Wales year ending September 2021 
 
2 Fraud Landscape Bulletin 2019-20 

18



 

 
 

8 Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Fund 

8.1 Fraud cases are identified in numerous different ways with referrals coming from various 

sources.  A primary channel is through joint working with the Department of Work and 

Pensions (DWP).  The Council is currently undertaking joint working arrangements on 

several cases where there has been an allegation of fraud against a claimant within the 

district that is claiming Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax Discount.  Fraud cases can also 

be referred from other departments within the Council.  This could include, but is not limited 

to, the Income Recovery Team, Visiting Officers or Housing Officers.  It is also possible for 

referrals to come from other authorities.  Whistleblowing from members of the public also 

plays a crucial part in combatting fraud within the Housing Benefit system.  Referrals can 

be made online, via email and via the phone.   

8.2 Summary of Housing Benefit Overpayments for 2021/22: 

 Number of invoices 
raised  

Amount of debt Amount recovered 

2021/22 313 £272,797 £340,409 

2020/21 386 £329,937 £310,687 

 

9 Single Person Discount (SPD) 

9.1 For Council tax purposes residents can apply for Single Person Discount (SPD) should they 

be the sole occupier of a property.  Residents who wish to apply for SPD are asked to 

complete a declaration confirming that they are the only adult resident in the property and 

that they are eligible to claim the discount.  

9.2 The Council’s primary approach for checking SPD entitlement is to participate biennially in 

a county wide counter fraud review alongside all Lincolnshire authorities.  The process for 

this includes taking a data extract from the Council Tax records of accounts in receipt of 

SPD.  This data is then put through a screening process to identify accounts which may be 

claiming SPD, where they are not entitled to, highlighting accounts where contact is needed.  

The next review was due to start in April 2020 but unfortunately, due to the impact of 

Coronavirus, it was delayed and started in April 2021 with a deadline for completion by 31 

August 2021.  The review is on track and expected to see a reduction in SPD of around 

£284,607 as a result of 671 SPD removals.  In addition, an estimated £27,090 has been 

raised as a result of 387 penalties being issued due to the ratepayer not responding to the 

review. 

9.3 Partnership resource is progressing the business case proposals for alternative approaches 

to the current bi-annual SPD bulk review.  This is driven by opportunity for further reductions 

in the levels of Council Tax revenue, lost to fraud or error, when SPDs are incorrectly 

granted or not cancelled following a change in household circumstances.  This proposed 

new approach was placed on hold due to the impact of Coronavirus – the tender was due 

to go out Summer 2020 but was deferred to Summer 2021 with a view to procure a service 

provider for a May 2022 start date.  Moving to a continuous rolling review is expected to 

increase revenue collection by reducing the time between loss of entitlement to SPD and 

detection date of the fraud or error, ensuring incorrect SPDs are removed sooner, and this 

will be strongly recommended.  Unfortunately, the introduction of the £150 Council Tax 

(Energy) Rebate has absorbed the district SPD resource.  In additional LCC have had 

changes to their personnel with the procurement and lead officer no longer being part of the 

19



 

 
 

project.  There is a meeting between Districts and LCC over the coming weeks to agree a 

way forward. 

9.4 Under current arrangements, and with a rolling review, intelligence and experience of other 

local authorities, shows that some of the SPD removals will continue to be paid, or be 

subsequently re-instated, following contact from claimants where it was shown they had 

deliberately lied, upon review, in order to maintain their discount.   

9.5 In addition to the proposed continuous review, the business proposal will include 

cost/benefit analysis of further options to use a fraud referrals service to identify historic 

cases for revenue collection and options to pursue sanctions, including prosecution.  Use 

of such a fraud referrals service provides all the information needed to demonstrate strong 

grounds to challenge those claimants who appear to have deliberately lied to maintain their 

discount or exemption.  Local Authority information it holds about claimants is cross-

matched with other data sources – highlighting anomalies (such as evidence of other adults 

living at the property) and pinpointing cases to be investigated further.  Whilst this could 

increase collection rates, and sanctions would act as a future fraud deterrent, pursuing such 

cases does have the potential to cause reputational damage and prosecution success is not 

guaranteed. 

10 Test and Trace Support Payments 

10.1 Since 28 September 2020, the Test and Trace Support Payment scheme has supported 

people on low income who are unable to work from home and will lose income if they are 

required to self-isolate because of COVID-19. 

10.2 Eligible individuals receive a £500 payment.  This is to help ensure people who have tested 

positive for COVID-19 and their close contacts self-isolate for the required period, and to 

encourage individuals who have symptoms to get tested.  This is important to help stop the 

transmission of COVID-19 and avoid further economic societal restrictions.  The scheme 

ended on 6 April 2022. 

10.3 South Kesteven District Council received a total funding of £520,534 broken down below: 

− £279,500 for mandatory scheme payments of £500 

− £135,200 for discretionary scheme payments of £500 

− £105,772 for administration of the scheme 

10.4 The Council is responsible for post-payment checks and conducts a monthly spot check on 

10% of payments made to identify whether a recipient continues to receive full pay during 

their self-isolation period. 

10.5 The Council has not yet identified anyone that has continued to receive full pay while self-

isolating but, if it did, the Council would have the right to recoup the money.  Any money 

that is recovered would be put towards the cost of running the scheme.  Local Authorities 

are not liable for any irrecoverable costs due to fraud. 

10.6 The Council has awarded £414,762 in self-isolation payments.  This is broken down into 

£269,500 for the mandatory scheme and £135,200 for the discretionary scheme. 

11 Business Rates Relief – Expanded Retail Discount (Covid support) 

11.1 The government announced in the budget on 29 October 2018 that it would provide a 

Business Rates Retail Discount to apply in years 2019/20 and 2020/21.   

20



 

 
 

11.2 In response to the Coronavirus pandemic, in the Budget on 11 March 2020, the government 

announced that it would increase the discount to 100% and extend it to include the leisure 

and hospitality sectors.  Following the announcement on 23 March 2020 of further measures 

to limit the spread of coronavirus, the government confirmed that some of the exclusions for 

this relief had been removed, so that retail, leisure and hospitality properties that had to 

close as a result of the restriction measure would be eligible for Expanded Retail Discount 

(ERD). 

11.3 The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) issued eligibility 

criteria (with a number of revisions) for the Council to use their discretionary relief powers 

under Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 to grant the relief.  Central 

government will fully reimburse the Council for the local share of the discretionary relief 

(using a grant under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003). 

11.4 The Council determined each individual case, having regard to the guidance which provided 

a list of properties that would benefit from the relief.  These properties were identified by 

description of use, which was allocated by the Valuation Office Agency, using the Business 

Rates Revenues software system.  Where it was clear an automatic award could be made, 

this was undertaken.   

11.5 The list provided by MHCLG was not intended to be exhaustive but a guide for local 

authorities as to the types of uses the government considered for this purpose to be eligible.  

As a result, those businesses where their description did not fall into the ‘’benefit from relief 

category’’ individual case decisions were undertaken and where there was a clear 

requirement to change the description, a request was made to the Valuation Office Agency. 

11.6 Outturn data on the actual total cost for providing the relief was provided on a monthly basis.   

11.7 Whilst the discount was not subject to State Aid, the award of ERD was used to form the 

eligibility criteria for one of the original grants – the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant 

(RHLG). 

11.8 The Council has awarded additional business rates relief during 2020/21 and 2021/22 in 

support of businesses affected by the pandemic: 

2020/21 £20,886,310 

2021/22 £8,186,370 

12 Counter Fraud Action Plan 2022/23 

Action By when Owner 

1) Fraud risk assessment 
Understand the fraud risks that public bodies and 
other organisations face and conduct a fraud risk 
assessment across the Council  

Summer 
2022 

Governance & 
Risk Officer 

2) Fraud awareness including elearning 
Continue to raise awareness amongst staff, 
stakeholders and partners about the risk of fraud in all 
areas of the Council’s business. 
 
The Partnership is working on its own fraud learning 
module which will be rolled out across the districts  

 
Ongoing 

 
 
 

Summer 
2022 

Governance & 
Risk Officer 

21



 

 
 

3) National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
Continue to commit to the NFI data matching 
exercises.  Next exercise scheduled for Autumn 2022 
with the matches being released in January 2023 

Ongoing  

Governance & 
Risk Officer 

 
Heads of 
Service 

4) Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership 
Contributing to the work of the Partnership by 
supporting the delivery of their action plan including 
keeping abreast of national developments in counter 
fraud work  

2022/23 

Governance & 
Risk Officer 

 
Head of 

Revenues, 
Benefits and 

Customer 
Service 

5) Housing Benefit Investigations 
Continue to support DWP Housing Benefit 
investigations 

Ongoing 

Head of 
Revenues, 

Benefits and 
Customer 
Service 

 

13 Consultation and Feedback Received, including Overview and Scrutiny 

13.1 None 

14 Reasons for the Recommendation 

14.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference; 11.5.4(iv) To approve 

the Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Framework, including Whistleblowing Policy and 

Anti-Money Laundering Policy, should monitor and review the counter fraud arrangements 

currently in place and the activities that are being undertaken to mitigate those risks. 

15 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

15.1 None. 

16 Financial Implications  

16.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

17 Legal and Governance Implications  

17.1 The report, including the action plan for 2022/23, are to be welcomed from a governance 

and legal perspective, as they represent effective ways of identifying and dealing with 

counter fraud.  Members should note the performance and scrutinise any elements to assist 

the role of the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

18 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

18.1 None. 

 

22



 

 
 

19 Risk and Mitigation 

19.1 None. 

20 Community Safety Implications  

20.1 None. 

21 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

21.1 The recommendation will have a neutral effect of the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

22 Other Implications (where significant)  

22.1 None. 

 

 
 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
8 June 2022 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

Deputy Leader of the Council 
   

         
  

 

Risk Management Annual Report 2021/22   
In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee, it is a requirement to produce an annual 
report on the risk management and business continuity arrangements in place. Risk management 
is fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its strategic objectives.  This report relates to the 
financial year 2021/22 and summarises the work delivered during this period. 
 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance  23 May 2022 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 23 May 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the Council 26 May 2022 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the Risk Management annual 
review outlined in this report. 

25

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A key element of the terms of reference of the Committee is to monitor and review the risk 

management arrangements in place and the activities that are being undertaken to assess 

the effectiveness of those arrangements. 

2 Risk Management Annual Report 

Risk Management Framework 

2.1 The current Risk Management Framework 2021/23 was revised and approved by 

Governance and Audit Committee at its meeting on 9 June 2021. The Framework provides 

details of the risk environment the Council operates within, and the controls and 

mechanisms that are in place, to ensure risk is sufficiently managed by officers and 

Members. Throughout the period of 2021/22, risk management activities have been 

undertaken in accordance with the Framework. During the financial year, the Framework 

has been responsive and adaptive in order to respond to the reflect the ever-changing 

operating framework.  

Risk Management Group 

2.2 The Risk Management Group, consisting of all Heads of Service (or their representative) 

plus other key officers, and chaired by the Governance & Risk Officer, met during the year 

to discuss issues relating to risk management, internal audit, insurance, counter fraud 

governance, procurement, data protection, health and safety, business continuity and 

safeguarding.  

2.3 Going forwards, Risk Management Group is now scheduled as part of the Senior Leadership 

Team terms of reference – the inclusion of Risk Management will be at alternate meetings 

ie quarterly.  It is proposed that at each meeting there will be a focus on one of the areas 

listed above along with a brief update on other areas where applicable. 

Service Risks  

2.4 The current service risks are in the process of being realigned to the new Council senior 

staffing structure and will be assessed for relevance and if additional risks can be identified. 

2.5 Heads of Service/Managers, as part of the completion of their service plans, were asked to 

identify their current service risks.  The Governance & Risk Officer will be meeting with 

Heads of Service/Managers throughout June to discuss service risks following which a full 

register will be produced.  This full register will be reviewed to identify if there are any trends 

or if further consideration is needed in respect of any risks that may need to be included the 

strategic risk register if appropriate.  This exercise will be undertaken during the year.    

Strategic Risk Register 

2.6 The Governance and Audit Committee last approved the Strategic Risk Register on 20 April 

2022.  

2.7 The following strategic risk themes are included within the Register: 

− Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

− Achieving Council transformation 

− Supporting communities 

− Achieving future financial resilience 

26



 

 
 

− Creating the right culture, capacity and capability  

− Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy and political change 

− Ensuring robust security measures to protect the Council’s data and network from 
external threats 

2.8 The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed by Corporate Management Team and Governance 

and Audit Committee biannually and is due for review over the summer to enable it to be 

presented to the September meeting of Committee. 

2.9 The Strategic Risk controls and actions are tracked and monitored using software 4risk™.  

This risk management software provides a complete picture of the risk, controls and 

assurance environment.  4risk enables and enhances the ability to monitor and measure 

overall exposure to risk and examine the effectiveness of the control environment through 

tailored reporting options.  Progress of risk actions can be tracked through to implementation 

and outcome.   

Annual Assurance Statement 

2.10 Heads of Service have, in respect of their area of responsibility, individually compiled an 

Annual Assurance Statement for 2021/22 which is designed to assess the effectiveness of 

the key internal control environment.  

2.11 Heads of Service were asked to agree, or otherwise, to various statements based on their 

knowledge and understanding across seven core areas of assurance:  

− Business Continuity  

− Governance  

− Health and Safety  

− IT Security and Confidentiality  

− Probity and Regularity  

− Procurement  

− Staffing and Development  

− Impact of Covid-19 

2.12 The overall assurance level revealed that managers fully agreed with 75% of the statements 

on assurance with the remainder being 16% partially agreed; 6% not agreed and 4% did not 

know.  

2.13 Areas identified for improvement, which were relevant across a broad range of service 

areas, were under the thematic headings of Business Continuity, Staffing and IT. 

2.14 Suggested actions will be taken to improve the level of assurance over the controls.  These 

may be addressed at service level, or corporately, to improve internal controls.  Internal 

audit as part of the annual planning process will seek verification of the assurance levels 

being provided.  This will further inform the overall assurance with regards to the 

management of assurance within the Council. Actions will be monitored throughout 2022/23.  

3 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

3.1 Governance and Audit Committee to approve the contents of this report. 

27



 

 
 

4 Reasons for the Recommendation 

4.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to monitor 

and review the risk management arrangements in place and the activities that are being 

undertaken.  In order to be able to consider the outcome of any review of existing 

arrangements the Committee must be fully informed. 

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

5.1 N/A 

6 Financial Implications  

6.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

7 Legal and Governance Implications  

7.1 There are no additional legal implications to consider. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

8.1 None. 

9 Risk and Mitigation 

9.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

10 Community Safety Implications  

10.1 None. 

11 Background Papers 

11.1 Risk Management Framework  

Report to the meeting of 9 June 2021 Governance and Audit Committee 

Appendix A Risk Management Framework 

11.2 Strategic Risk Register Update 

Report to the meeting of 20 April 2022 Governance and Audit Committee 

Appendix A Strategic Risk Register 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

The recommendation will have a neutral effect on the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

13 Appendices 

13.1 None.  

 

28

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29931/Risk%20Management%20Framework%202021-2023.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29932/Appendix%20A.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s33960/Strategic%20Risk%20Register%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s33961/Appendix%20A%20-%20Draft%20Strategic%20Risk%20Register%20March%202022.pdf


 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
8th June 2022 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

   

         
  

 

2021/22 Treasury Management Annual Report 

This report provides Governance and Audit Committee with the details of the Council’s treasury 
management activity for the financial year 2021/22. 
 
 

 

 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance  

 
 01476 406208 

  Alison.Hall-Wright@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 25 May 2022 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  25 May 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the 
Council  

26 May 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee: 

• Note and approve the content of the annual report on the Treasury Management 
Activity for 2021/22. 

 

29

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 

treasury indicators for 2021/22. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code 

of Practice on Treasury Management, (the Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 

Capital Finance in Local Authorities, (the Prudential Code). 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 

treasury indicators for 2021/22. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code 

of Practice on Treasury Management, (the Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 

Capital Finance in Local Authorities, (the Prudential Code). 

2.2 For the financial year 2021/22 the Council adhered to the suggested minimum reporting 

requirements and members received the following reports: 

• An annual treasury management strategy in advance of the year which was approved 
by Council on 1 March 2021 

• A mid-year treasury update report which was approved by Governance and Audit 
Committee on 26 January 2022 

• An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the 
strategy (this report) 

2.3 Governance and Audit Committee has delegated powers to deal with matters relating to the 

Council’s treasury management activities. Specifically, it has the responsibility to monitor, 

review and amend as appropriate the Council approved Treasury Management Strategy 

during the financial year. The regulatory environment places a much greater onus on 

members for the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This 

report is important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury 

activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by 

members. 

Treasury Position at 31 March 2022 

The Strategy for 2021/22 was approved by Council on 1 March 2021. A key element of daily 

operations focuses on comparing current market conditions in conjunction with the Link 

credit rating list, using this as a tool for guidance, with the option to deviate from this 

guidance only when there are clear alternative options available to the Council. Any decision 

of this nature is clearly documented for audit purposes. The aim of the Strategy is to 

generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which enables diversification of 

investments and thus avoidance of risk whilst providing security. A summary of the Council’s 

treasury position at 31 March 2022 is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30



 

 
 

Actual Debt Management Activity During 2021/22 

 

Actual 
Borrowing 
Position 

31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

Principal Average Rate Principal Average Rate 

Fixed Interest 
Rate Debt 

£92.656m 2.67% £89.435m 2.64% 

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

 

£107.868m 

 

£107.101m 

Over/(Under) 
Borrowing 

(£15.211m) (£17.666m) 

Investment 
position 

31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

Principal Average Rate Principal Average Rate 

Fixed Interest 
Investments 

£18.500m 0.31% £65.000m 1.42% 

Variable 
Interest 
Investments 

£49.761m 0.48% £24.558m 0.85% 

Total 
Investments 

£68.261m 0.40% £89.558m 1.26% 

Net borrowing 
position 

£24.395m (£0.123m) 

 

2.4 The £89.434m is split between short term and long-term borrowing as follows: 

• Short term - £3.221m which is repayable within the next 12 months 

• Long term - £86.213m 

Actual Investment Management Activity During 2021/22 

2.5 The Council’s investment policy is governed by Department for levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities (DLUHC) guidance, which was implemented in the annual investment strategy 

approved by the Council on 1 March 2021. The investment activity during the year complied 

with the approved strategy throughout the whole year. During the year the Council had no 

liquidity difficulties. 

2.6 At 31 March 2022 the Council held short and long-term investments of £89.558m and was 

compliant with the council’s policy to hold not more than 35% of investments as long term. 

This total includes a £1.12m investment in Gravitas and a £3m investment in the CCLA 

Property Fund. 

2.7 The CCLA Property Fund invests in property so the value of any investment in the fund can 

fluctuate as the value of property fluctuates and a quarterly dividend payment is received. 

The council views this as a long-term investment that it has entered into for a minimum of 

five years as this manages the risk of fluctuations in the value of the investment which was 

£3.2m at 31 March 2022 compared with £2.7m at 31 March 2021. The primary reason for 

investing in the fund was for the quarterly dividend payment as the return is significantly 

31



 

 
 

higher than the return on other investments. The dividend payable for the year was £104k 

which is a 3.5% return on investment. 

2.8 The total amount of variable rate investments has decreased between 31 March 2021 and 

31 March 2022 from £49.761m to £24.558m respectively as the interest rates achievable 

on notice accounts was inferior to those for fixed rate investments. This decision was made 

to ensure that the Council was able to achieve a return on investments and also able to 

meet its cashflow commitments due to careful structuring of its investments. There were no 

cashflow issues during 2021/22. 

2.9 The duration and counterparties of investments at 31 March 2022 are shown in the following 

graphs. When investments are placed the duration is determined by taking into 

consideration the treasury advice received from Link and the cash flow for the Council. A 

number of counterparties are used as the Council has recommended investment limits that 

can be placed with each institution which assists with risk management. 

 

 

 
 

 

0

2000000

4000000

6000000

8000000

10000000

12000000

14000000

Investments Held at 31 March 2022

Specified

non Specified

0

5000000

10000000

15000000

20000000

25000000

30000000

35000000

Overnight 2-30 31-91 92-182 183-273 274-365 366+

Duration of Investments

Total

32



 

 
 

2.10 As part of the role performed by our treasury advisers, we are also provided with 

benchmarking comparative information across all their clients which helps the Council 

understand how its investment portfolio is performing in relation to others. 

2.11 The table below shows for each quarter analysis our average rate of return was 0.79% when 

compared to other District Councils within the comparative group. This reflects the prudent 

approach to managing risk and return in order to maximise our investment returns whilst 

balancing our exposure to risk. 

Quarter ending SK 
WARoR* 

District 
WARoR* 

SK 
WARR** 

District 
WARR** 

Q1 – June 2020 0.11% 0.18% 3.64 3.07 

Q2 – Sept 2020 0.13% 0.15% 3.85 3.11 

Q3 – Dec 2020 0.18% 0.16% 3.90 3.17 

Q4 – Mar 2021 0.79% 0.54% 4.38 2.70 

 *WARoR – weighted average rate of return 

 ** WARR – weighted average rate of risk 

 

2.12 As part of the prudential code the Council sets a number of prudential and treasury 

indicators as part of the treasury strategy, the estimated performance against these 

indicators was provided in the treasury strategy approved on 1 March 2021 and the actual 

performance against these indicators is detailed in Appendix 1. 

Looking Ahead 

2.13 The outlook for 2022/23 remains uncertain. The MPC has increased Bank Rate at a much 

faster pace than originally anticipated and LINK have predicted that by the end of 2022 this 

will peak at 2%. The economy is set to flatline in Quarters 2 and 3 which is complicating 

matters and adding to the growing possibility that the UK economy may fall into recession 

at some point during the next year.  

 International factors cannot be ignored. The war in Ukraine has added to already present 

inflationary pressures, as economies bounced back from the effects of Covid-induced 

lockdowns. Pricing pressure pertaining to oil, gas, electricity, wheat, and fertilisers are only 

some of the better-known aspects. Moreover, reductions in the number of people actively 

seeking employment have also put upward pressure on wages and those costs are likely to 

be passed on to consumers. Regarding the UK, Brexit factors will also have had a negative 

impact on the number of workers with appropriate skill-sets available to fill the current record 

1.3m job vacancies. 

  

Summary 

2.14 The Council’s treasury management functions have operated effectively during 2021/22 and 

have successfully achieved the following: 

• Repayment of principal has been secured in all deposits. 

• The Council’s cash liquidity requirement has been met throughout the financial year. 

• Investment income levels have exceeded the amended budget as investment levels 
were higher than originally estimated. 

• Robust management of the Council’s debt position. 

• Performance indicators set for 2021/22 have been achieved. 

33



 

 
 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 None 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 As set out in the recommendations 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local government act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 

prudential and treasury indicators for 2021/22. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Not applicable 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 These are included in the report 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Council is under a duty to manage its resources prudently and therefore due 

consideration must always be given to its borrowing and lending strategy. A wide range of 

local authority finance activities, including borrowing, lending, financial management and 

the approval of types of investment vehicle are governed by legislation and various 

regulations. 

8.2 This report provides details of the Council’s performance in respect of Treasury 

management against policy set out as part of the Budget and policy framework. Members 

should note the performance and scrutinise any elements to assist the role of the 

Governance and Audit Committee in its review of the Treasury Management Strategy.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 None 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no exceptional/high risks have been 

identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 Not applicable 

34



 

 
 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29207/Appendix%20G%20TM%20St

rategy%202021-22.pdf 

 

14.2 Treasury Management Mid-year Review 2021/22 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32272/Treasury%20Management%2

0Mid_year%20Review.pdf 

 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – 2021/22 Prudential and Treasury indicators 

 

 

 

35

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29207/Appendix%20G%20TM%20Strategy%202021-22.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29207/Appendix%20G%20TM%20Strategy%202021-22.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32272/Treasury%20Management%20Mid_year%20Review.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32272/Treasury%20Management%20Mid_year%20Review.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

2021/22 PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 
 
During 2021/22, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements.  The key 
actual prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital expenditure activities 
during the year, with comparators, are as follows: 

 

Actual prudential and treasury 
indicators 

2020/21 
Actual 

£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2021/22 
Actual 

£m 

Capital expenditure 
• General Fund 
• HRA 
• Total 

 

2.230 
3.167 
5.397 

 
5.821 

10.106 
15.927 

 

5.137 
8.314 

13.451 

 
Capital Financing 
Requirement: 
• General Fund 
• HRA 
• Total 
 

 
 

11.464 
96.404 

107.868 

 
 

14.392 
93.182 

107.574 

 
 

13.919 
93.182 

107.101 

External debt 92.656 92.656 92.656 

Investments 
• Longer than 1 year 
• Under 1 year 
• Total 
 

3.000 
64.460 
67.460 

 

 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

 
 

5.000 
83.286 
88.286 

 

 
The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by S3 of 
the Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to borrow above this 
level.   
 
The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of 
the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over the 
boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached.  
 

 2020/21  2021/22 

Authorised limit £141.765m £148.000m 

Operational boundary £115.000m £115.000m 

 
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the 
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term obligation costs net of investment 
income) against the net revenue stream.  

Ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream 

31 March 2021 
actual 

2021/22 
Revised limits 

31 March 2022 
Provisional Actual* 

 General Fund (0.87%) (0.72%) (1.10%) 

 HRA 13.67% 12.66% 11.31% 

 
*these are provisional figures as the 2021/22 outturn is in the process of being finalised 

 
 

37



Appendix A 

 

HRA Ratio – net debt per dwelling 

 2020/21 
Actual 

2021/22 
Estimated 

2021/22 
Actual 

HRA Debt £m 92.656 89.434 89.434 

Number of HRA Dwellings 5,914 5,876 5,884 

Debt per Dwelling £ 15,667 15,220 15,199 

 
Net borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the 
medium term, the Council’s external borrowing net of investments, must only be for a capital 
purpose.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue 
expenditure.  Net borrowing should not therefore, except in the short term, have exceeded the 
CFR for 2020/21 plus the expected changes to the CFR over 2021/22 and 2022/23 from 
financing the capital programme.  This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in 
advance of its immediate capital needs in 2021/22.   

 
The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows: 

 31 March 2021 
Actual 

31 March 2022 
Actual 

Under 12 months  £3.222m £3.221m 

12 months and within 24 months £3.222m £3.222m 

24 months and within 5 years £9.665m £9.665m 

5 years and within 10 years £16.108m £16.109m 

10 years and above £60.439m £57.217m 

The exposure to fixed and variable rates was as follows: 

 31 March 2021 
Actual 

31 March 2022 
Actual 

Fixed rate (principal or interest) 18.500m 65.000m 

Variable rate (principal or interest) 49.761m 24.558m 

 

 
 

31 March 2021 
Principal 

Rate/ Return 
31 March 2022 

Principal 
Rate/ Return 

Total debt £92.656m 2.67% £89.435m 2.64% 

CFR £107.868m  £107.101m  

Over/ (under) 
borrowing 

(£15.211m)  (£17.666m)  

Total investments £68.261m 0.40% £89.558m 1.26% 

Net debt £24.395m  (£0.123m)  

38



Governance and Audit Committee Work Plan 2022-23 
 

Committee Membership: 7 
 

Chairman: Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

 

 8 June 2022  

Annual Treasury Management 
Review 

Report detailing the Council’s treasury management activity for 
the financial year 2021/22. 
 

Notes an approves the annual 
treasury management activity for 
2021/22. 

Counter Fraud Annual Report  As part of the Committees’ Terms of Reference the Committee 
monitors and reviews the counter fraud arrangements in place 
and the activities that are being undertaken to mitigate those 
risks.   

Members to approve report and 
Workplan for 2022/23.  

Risk Management Annual 
Report 

In accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Committee it is 
a requirement to produce an annual report on the risk 
management and business continuity arrangements in place. Risk 
management is fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its 
strategic objectives.   

Members to note the report for the 
financial year 2021/22. 

 20 July 2022  

Review of Effectiveness and 
Terms of Reference 

Biennial review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference (July 
2022) 

To consider the Committee’s work 
over the previous two municipal 
years and suggest changes to the 
Terms of Reference if necessary. 

Section 106 Update To provide an update on the process of issuing Section 106 funds 
(July 2022) 

Members to note 

39

A
genda Item

 8



Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

 28 November 2022  

 
Strategic Risk Register 
 

 
The Strategic Risk Register is to be presented to Committee in 
Autumn 2022. 
 

 
To review and consider approving 
the Strategic Risk Register. 

 Unscheduled Items  

External Audit Plan Overview of the planned scope and timing of 
the statutory audit of the final accounts and the Value for Money 
work. 

To consider accepting the External 
Audit Plan. 

External Audit – Annual Report 
on Grants and Returns 

Report providing details on the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim. To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Code of Conduct Complaints Update report  To review/note report 

 

 

Items to be allocated – as and when required 

External Audit ad hoc reporting 

Risk Management Framework 2021 - 2023 

Code of Corporate Governance 

Other policies e.g., Contract Procedure Rules (Bi annual review May 2025), Codes of Conduct, Financial Regulations (Bi annual review May 
2025),  
Treasury Management Strategy, Financial Management Code 

Covid Recovery Reserve Funding 

 

40


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 April 2022
	4 Updates from previous meeting
	5 Counter Fraud Annual Report
	6 Risk Management Annual Report
	7 Annual Treasury Management Review
	Appendix A 2021-22 Prudential and Treasury Indicators

	8 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

